
Page 1 of 3

Notice of Meeting 

Audit & Governance Committee

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive 
Friday, 28 August 
2020 
at 10.30 am

Remote Meeting Joss Butler
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk

Joanna Killian

Members
Mr David Harmer (Chairman), Mr Keith Witham (Vice-Chairman), Mr Edward Hawkins, Dr Peter 

Szanto, Mr Stephen Spence and Mr Stephen Cooksey

Ex Officio:
Mr Tim Oliver (Leader of the Council), Mr Colin Kemp (Deputy Leader), Mr Tony Samuels 

(Chairman of the Council) and Mrs Helyn Clack (Vice-Chairman of the Council)

We’re on Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy



Page 2 of 3

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (22 MAY 2020)

To agree the minutes as a true record of the meeting.

(Pages 1 
- 8)

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter 

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or 

(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting

NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 

where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 
spouse or civil partner)

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 
reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

4 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

To receive any questions or petitions.

Notes:
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 

before the meeting (24 August 2020).
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (21 

August 2020).
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 

petitions have been received.

5 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

To review the Committee’s recommendations tracker.

(Pages 9 
- 14)

6 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE

To provide an update on the procurement of a strategic risk partner to 
enable the committee to meet its responsibilities for monitoring the 
development and operation of the council’s risk management 
arrangements.  

(Pages 
15 - 20)



Page 3 of 3

7 INTERNAL AUDIT & COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT AND 
OPINION 2019-20

The purpose of this report is to give an opinion on the adequacy of Surrey 
County Council’s control environment as a contribution to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources. The report covers the 
audit work completed in the year from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 in 
accordance with the Internal Audit Strategy for 2019/20.

(Pages 
21 - 48)

8 2019/20 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT

This report summarises the Council’s treasury management activities 
during 2019/20, as required, to ensure compliance with the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in 
the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which requires the 
Authority to approve a treasury management annual report after the end of 
each financial year.

(Pages 
49 - 58)

9 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of Audit & Governance Committee will be on 1 October 
2020.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive

Published: 20 August 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES of the meeting of the AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE held 
at 10.30 am on 22 May 2020 as a Remote Meeting.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its next 
meeting.

Elected Members:

Mr David Harmer (Chairman)
Mr Keith Witham (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Edward Hawkins
Dr Peter Szanto
Mr Stephen Spence
Mr Stephen Cooksey

9/20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1]

Stephen Spence gave his apologies for the first half of the meeting. 

10/20 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 29 JANUARY 2020  [Item 2]

The Minutes were approved as an accurate record of the previous meeting.

11/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3]

There were none.

12/20 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4]

There were none.

13/20 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  [Item 5]

Witnesses: 
David John, Audit Manager 

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. In regards to Action A2/19, the Audit Manager informed Members that 
managers had not yet signed off the follow-up audit but that it was 
likely to receive reasonable assurance which would be a great 
improvement.  

2. In regards to action A11/19, the Chairman confirmed that the item was 
included on the current agenda and so the action could be marked as 
complete. 

3. Members noted that Select Committees would still take place virtually 
during the pandemic. Members requested that the details of timings be 
circulated to the Committee. 

Action/Further information to note:

Members requested that the details of upcoming virtual Select Committee 
timings be circulated to the Committee.

Page 1

2

Item 2



RESOLVED:

Members noted the report. 

14/20 REMOTE MEETINGS REGULATIONS  [Item 6]

Witnesses: 
Paul Evans, Director - Law and Governance 

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Director introduced the report and provided a brief summary. 
Members noted that the protocol was created to ensure that decision 
making could continue during the lockdown and that the Audit and 
Governance Committee had been tasked to monitor the protocol. This 
report included details of the delegated decisions which took place 
following the council’s decision to temporarily delegate decision 
making. Following this, the Government issued new regulations which 
allowed committees to take decisions remotely and superseded the 
council’s interim arrangements. 

2. Members noted that Committee meetings had taken place using 
Microsoft Teams and that earlier difficulties with the software had been 
resolved, but some concern still remained. Members of the Committee 
thanked Democratic Services for their hard work to support virtual 
meetings. 

3. Members felt that public participation during virtual meetings would be 
a challenge. 

4. The Committee noted that any suggested amendments to the protocol 
should be sent to the Governance Lead Manager. 

5. The Chairman suggested amended recommendations for the 
Committee which were agreed. 

Action/Further information to note:

None. 

RESOLVED:
 
1.          The Committee received a report in conjunction with the new regulations 

and the letter from Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government to Local Government Chief Executives (annexes 1 & 2);

 
2.          The Committee understood that the regulations had superseded the 

council’s interim arrangements; and

3.          The Committee noted the decisions made under delegation in the period 
before the new regulations were enacted

 
4.          The Committee will continue to monitor any decisions made under the 

delegation approved at the meeting of County Council on 17 March 
2020 alongside reviewing the way that remote committee meetings are 
working under the Remote Meetings Regulations.

Page 2

2



15/20 ETHICAL STANDARDS ANNUAL REVIEW  [Item 7]

Witnesses:
Paul Evans, Director – Law and Governance 

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Director introduced the item and provided a brief summary. 
Members noted that the report contained:

 confirmation of current arrangements.
 Internal Audit work on Members registers on gifts and 

hospitality which included a change to the gifts and hospitality 
threshold, gifts to family, and a question on whether refused 
gifts should be registered. 

 a review of code of conduct.
 detail that no serious complaints had been received for issues 

relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct.   
2. Members noted that the ‘Independent Person’ was appointed using a 

statutory process with local discretion where an advert was placed to 
seek applications. The Council then followed a process to carry out 
interviews and a final decision was considered by the meeting of the 
County Council. 

3. A Member of the Committee stated that in their experience most 
complaints were not based on issues with Member conduct. 

4. Members of the Committee agreed that, subject to officer discussions 
with Group Leaders, Members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee would form a working group to review possible changes to 
the Members’ Code of Conduct following recommendations noted in 
the report. Members noted that the Audit and Governance Committee 
was politically proportional and felt that it was a good representation of 
the council and its political views. Members further suggested that 
substitutes should be appointed to attend the working group if needed. 

Actions/Further information to note:

None. 

RESOLVED:

That the Audit and Governance Committee:

1. Noted the Monitoring Officer’s report on recent activity in relation to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct and complaints made in relation to 
member conduct.

2. Agreed to form a Committee working group to review possible 
changes to the Members’ Code of Conduct in light of 
recommendations from:

a. Surrey County Council Internal Audit Report of Register of 
Interests/Gifts and Hospitality.

Page 3

2



b. The Committee on Standards and Ethics ‘Local Government Ethical 
Standards’ report (2019).

c. The Local Government Association Model Code of Conduct (due to be 
published in June 2020) 

16/20 RISK MANAGEMENT BASELINE REVIEW  [Item 8]

Mr Stephen Spence arrived at 11:15am

Witnesses: 
Anna D’Alessandro, Director – Corporate Finance  

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Director introduced the item and provided a brief summary. 
Members noted that risk management consultants Gallagher Bassett 
had undertaken a baseline review of the council’s strategic risk 
management arrangements during the end of 2019. Due to the 
COVID-19 outbreak, officers had not been able to progress work 
following the review as much as planned. Members noted that 
Gallagher Bassett had provided a number of recommendations on:
 the risk management framework and whether it was appropriate.
 training for Members and officers to integrate a risk culture
 risk practices in terms of business planning and how integrated it 

was  
 Detailed reviews of Surrey’s strategic risk register 
Members noted that the Council intended to engage a risk 
management partner to work with Members and officers to integrate 
risk into the council’s business culture while working with partners and 
the Audit and Governance Committee. Following discussions with the 
Corporate Leadership Team, an update would be brought to a future 
meeting of the Committee. 

2. Members highlighted that the recommendations provided by Gallagher 
Bassett were serious and that it was important to have an appropriate 
timeline. 

3. Officers stated that a good partner for this work would help the council 
drive forward a risk culture in the council. 

4. Following discussions, the Committee asked that final proposals are 
considered by Members in a formal or informal Audit and Governance 
Committee meeting. 

Action/Further information to note:

The Committee asked that an update and final proposals are considered by 
Members in a formal or informal Audit and Governance Committee meeting. 

RESOLVED:

The Committee considered the contents of the report and confirmed that they 
were satisfied with the next steps.

Page 4

2



17/20 INTERNAL STRATEGY AND ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21  [Item 9]

Witnesses: 
Russel Banks, Chief Internal Auditor

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report and informed 
Members that it was an annual report which included the Internal Audit 
strategy and work plan. The report outlined key elements of how 
Internal Audit approached work, a detailed work programme for the 
year and the Internal Audit Charter. Members noted that, due to 
COVID-19 and the need for Internal Audit officers to support front line 
staff, the work plan had not yet begun and that it was expected to be 
updated to reflect the current situation and additional work caused by 
the pandemic. An updated plan would be brought to the Audit and 
Governance Committee for consideration. 

2. Members stated that during the course of the last five years there had 
been a significant decline in the number of Audit days in the plan. 
Officers were asked whether this was due to the amount of work or a 
decline in resource. Officers responded that there had been some 
reduction in Audit days due to savings plans however days had also 
reduced due to Internal Audit incorporating more efficient ways of 
working. The Chief Internal Auditor confirmed that he was comfortable 
with the number of Audit days available. 

3. In regards to recent changes due to the COVID-19 situation, Members 
highlighted the need for Internal Audit to look into areas where new 
processes were implemented rapidly to ensure no mistakes were 
made. Officers confirmed that Internal Audit had been very responsive 
to requests for advice from different parts of the council and planned to 
revisit all areas to consider what processes would be in the future.

4. Members requested that the recommendations in the report reflected 
the need for the Committee to consider an amended Internal Audit and 
Corporate Fraud Plan due to the current COVID-19 situation. This was 
agreed and amended recommendations are included within these 
minutes. 

Action/Further information to note:

None. 

RESOLVED:

Members considered the contents of the report and Appendices, and 
approved the: 

 The Internal Audit Strategy (Annex A)
 The Internal Audit Charter (Appendix B)

Members noted the Internal Audit and Corporate Fraud Plan (Appendix A) 
and, due to changes caused by the COVOD-19 situation, agreed to consider 
a full amended plan in the second half of 2020. An update on the situation 
would also be brought to the next Committee meeting. 

Page 5

2



18/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - QUARTER 3 (01/10/19 - 
31/12/19)  [Item 10]

Witnesses: 
David John, Audit Manager 

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Audit Manager introduced the report and provided a brief 
summary. The report summarised Internal Audits completed between 
October and September 2019. Members noted a correction on page 
94 of the agenda where it displayed three ‘reasonable assurances’ 
and two ‘non opinions’. This was incorrect as there should be four 
‘reasonable assurances’ and one 'non opinion’.   

2. A Member of the Committee highlighted that he was waiting for a 
response to a query on a recent Traffic Light Audit. Officers agreed to 
contact the Member outside the meeting. 

3. A Member highlighted that only a small proportion of Audits received a 
substantial assurance response. Officers stated that this was expected 
due to the Audit Plan being risk focused. 

Action/Further information to note:

None. 

RESOLVED:

The Committee is asked to note the report and consider any further action 
required in the response to issues raised.

19/20 SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL COUNTER FRAUD STRATEGY  [Item 11]

Witnesses: 
Simon White, Audit Manager - Counter Fraud 

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Audit Manager introduced the report and provided a brief 
summary. Members noted that there had been no significant changes 
to the strategy. 

Action/Further information to note:

None. 

RESOLVED:

The Committee endorsed the Counter Fraud Strategy.
 

20/20 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN UPDATE - SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL (APRIL 
2020)  [Item 11a]

Witnesses: 

Page 6

2



Ciaran T McLaughlin, Grant Thornton 

Key points raised during the discussion:

1. The Committee considered both item 11a and item 11b as one item. 
Members noted that the reports had been published in a 
supplementary agenda on 19 May 2020. 

2. The representative from Grant Thornton introduced the reports and 
provided a brief summary. Members noted that the report provided an 
update to the planned scope and timing of the statutory audits as 
reported in the Audit Plan dated 29 January 2020. Members also 
noted that there was an opinion timeline change due to the pandemic 
and that work was ongoing with Surrey’s Finance team to ensure all 
audits were completed. The reports also set out significant risks 
inputted due to the COVID-19 situation.  

3. Members noted that Grant Thornton would provide copies of 
evaluations to their evaluation experts to ensure they met 
requirements. The representative stated that they expected there to be 
a material uncertainty in the environment which may lead to an 
unqualified audit opinion with a note to the current situation. 

4. Members noted that the council’s draft Statement of Accounts would 
not include an Annual Governance Statement at this stage due to lack 
of capacity during the COVID-19 situation. 

Action/Further information to note:

None. 

RESOLVED:

The Committee noted the external audit plan update reports. 

21/20 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN UPDATE - SURREY PENSION FUND (APRIL 
2020)  [Item 11b]

This item was considered during item 11a. 

22/20 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 12]

The date of the meeting was noted as 31 July 2020. 

Meeting ended at: 12.10 pm
______________________________________________________________

Chairman

Page 7

2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

2



Audit & Governance Committee
   28 August 2020 

ACTIONS TRACKER 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

For Members to consider and comment on the Committee’s actions tracker. 

INTRODUCTION:

An actions tracker recording actions from previous meetings is attached as Annex A, 
and the Committee is asked to review progress on the items listed. 

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of actions from 
previous meetings in Annex A.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

REPORT CONTACT: Joss Butler, Committee Manager
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk 

Sources/background papers: None

Page 9

5

Item 5

mailto:joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A
Audit & Governance Committee Action Tracking

ACTIONS

Number Meeting 
Date

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom

Action update

A2/18 22/01/2018 Business Continuity To discuss timings for future 
reports once training for 
Members has taken place on 
Business Continuity.

Chairman April 2018 – Member Development session titled 
‘Introduction to Emergency Planning’ took place on 
30 April 2018. The session provided Members with 
an overview of the response structures in place for 
emergency situations, as well as some of the key 
risks facing both Surrey County Council and local 
authorities more widely. 
July 2018 – The Chairman highlighted that he 
intended to request a report on business continuity 
and emergency management towards the end of 
the Council’s transformation.
July 2019 – The Committee agreed to keep this 
item ongoing until further information is received. 

P
age 11

5



Annex A
Audit & Governance Committee Action Tracking

Number Meeting 
Date

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom

Action update

A2/19 

(reinstated)

07/02/19

(originally 
marked as 
complete at 
the April 
2019 
Committee)

Internal Audit 
Progress Report - 
Quarter 3 (01/10/18 
- 31/12/18)

The Committee to receive an 
update on the findings and the 
progress on agreed actions for 
the Children’s Families & 
Learning Care Assessments 
audit at the Committee meeting 
in September 2019.

Audit 
Manager

August 2019 – The Audit Manager reported that the 
follow-up audit to the CFLC Care Assessments 
audit would not be ready for September’s meeting. 
However a verbal update would be provided in due 
course. 
18/11/2019 - The Audit Manager to update the 
Committee.
17/12/2019 - Audit Manager informed the 
Committee that the follow-up audit was in its draft 
phase and officers hoped to circulate a final version 
by February or March 2020. Members noted that 
there had been improvements in the service and 
that the follow-up audit was expected to be positive. 
The Chairman asked that the action remain on the 
Actions Tracker.
29/01/20 - the Audit Manager confirmed that the 
report was underway and was likely to receive 
reasonable assurance. It was expected to be 
circulated in February 2020. 
May 2020 - Audit Manager informed Members that 
managers had not yet signed off the follow-up audit 
but that it was expected to receive reasonable 
assurance which would be a great improvement.  

P
age 12

5



Annex A
Audit & Governance Committee Action Tracking

Number Meeting 
Date

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom

Action update

A15/19 26/09/2019 Select Committee 
meetings – 
Members to attend

When possible, Members to 
attend and/or watch the webcast 
of the four select committee 
meetings as part of their 
governance review over 
scrutiny.

Members October- The Chairman and Mr Hawkins attended 
the Resources and Performance Select Committee.

December – the Chairman attended the Resources 
and Performance Select Committee and the 
Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture 
Select Committee. Mr Szanto attended a Task 
Group of the Resources and Performance Select 
Committee

January - David Harmer, Edward Hawkins and 
Peter Szanto confirmed that they had attended 
Select Committees since the last meeting. 
Comments provided by Members are outlined in 
the 29 January 2020 meeting’s minutes. 

May – The Chairman request that Members of the 
Committee were resent details of upcoming select 
committees. 

A17/19 17/12/19 Action Tracker The Committee Manager to 
circulate confirmation on 
whether a non-Select 
Committee Member was able to 
join a Select Committee’s Task 
Group. 

Committee 
Manager 

Confirmation was circulated to Members that non-
Select Committee Members are able to join Task 
Groups although it is at the discretion of the Task 
Group Chairman. 

29/01/20 – The Chairman asked that this action 
remain on the Actions Tracker. 

P
age 13

5



Annex A
Audit & Governance Committee Action Tracking

Number Meeting 
Date

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom

Action update

A18/19 22 May 
2020 

Risk Management 
Baseline Review 

The Committee asked that an 
update and final proposals 
following the Risk Management 
Baseline Review are considered 
by Members in a formal or 
informal Audit and Governance 
Committee meeting. 

Director – 
Corporate 
Finance 

Officers to provide an update at the Committee 
meeting in August 2020. 

COMPLETED RECOMMENDATIONS/REFERRALS/ACTIONS – TO BE DELETED

P
age 14

5



Audit & Governance Committee 
28 August 2020

Risk Management Update

Purpose of the report:  

To provide an update on the procurement of a strategic risk partner to enable the committee 
to meet its responsibilities for monitoring the development and operation of the council’s risk 
management arrangements.  

Recommendations

It is recommended that the committee consider the contents of the report and confirm they 
are satisfied with the next steps.

Risk management update

The attached slides (Annex A) provide an overview of the procurement of strategic risk 
partner, the approach and timeline and next steps.

Implications

Financial and value for money implications

1. Risk management arrangements, including effective controls and timely action, 
supports the achievement of the council’s objectives and enables value for money.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

2. There are no direct equalities implications in this report.

Risk Management Implications

3. Embedded risk management arrangements leads to improved governance and 
effective decision-making. 

Page 15

6

Item 6



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Report contact: Cath Edwards, Risk Manager, Finance

Contact details: cath.edwards@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 16

6

mailto:cath.edwards@surreycc.gov.uk


• Risk management consultants Gallagher Bassett carried out a Baseline 

Review of the Council’s Strategic Risk Management arrangements at the end 

of 2019 and a number of recommendations were made.

• We have procured a Strategic Risk partner to support the implementation of 

the recommendations with the aim of:

Raising the profile, impact and effectiveness of the council’s approach to 

risk management and ensuring clear policies are in place, are adequately 

resourced and have full engagement across the Council. 

• 5 risk consultancy bids were submitted.  Initial evaluation undertaken was 

based on quality and reduced number of bids to 2.  Director of Corporate 

Finance, Chief Internal Auditor and Senior Finance Business Partner (Risk) 

spoke to the final two companies about their bids.  

• Contract awarded to Ernst & Young (EY).

Embedding a new Risk Management approach and 
culture

P
age 17

6



EY approach

EY will develop and embed an effective and valued approach to managing risks 

(including threats and opportunities) across Surrey County Council.  Each phase 

of the approach will focus on developing a component of a cohesive risk 

strategy and framework.

The approach has been designed such that from the outset:

• Stakeholders from across SCC are engaged in the development of the risk 

management approach;

• Best practice and risk management standards (ISO31000, Orange Book) are 

applied; and

• Risk management is grounded in the objectives of SCC, and aligned with its 

wider structures, processes and activities.

EY will undertake 6 phases of work over a four-month period and then continue 

to support SCC for a further eight months to track progress and ensure the 

expected benefits are realised. 

P
age 18

6



P
age 19

6



Next steps

• Kick off meeting and planning session with EY

• EY to attend Audit and Governance Committee on 1st October to provide 

approach and next steps

• Progress updates to be provided to CLT and Audit and Governance 

Committee over the course of the engagement.

P
age 20

6



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
28 August 2020 

 

Internal Audit & Counter Fraud Annual Report and Opinion 2019-20 

 
 

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE: 

 
The purpose of this report is to give an opinion on the adequacy of Surrey County Council’s 
control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources.  The report covers the audit work completed in the year from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020 in accordance with the Internal Audit Strategy for 2019/20. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
Members are asked to: 
 

(i) Note the work undertaken and the performance of Internal Audit in 2019/20 and the 
resultant annual opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor; and 

(ii) Determine whether there are any matters that the Committee wishes to draw to the 
attention of the Cabinet or full Council; 

(iii) Consider whether the Council’s arrangements for internal audit have proved effective 
during 2019/20 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 
1. All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 

Local Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The latter 
states that authorities ‘must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’.  Annually, the Chief 
Internal Auditor is required to provide an overall opinion on the Council’s internal control 
environment, risk management arrangements and governance framework to support the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
2. It is a management responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems and to 

ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and outcomes 
achieved. 

 
3. No assurance can ever be absolute; however, based on the internal audit work 

completed, the Chief Internal Auditor can provide reasonable assurance that Surrey 
County Council has in place an adequate and effective framework of governance, risk 
management and internal control for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 

 
4. This opinion, and the evidence that underpins it, is further explained in the full Internal 

Audit Service’s Annual Report and Opinion which forms Annexe A of this report.  The 
report highlights: 

 

 Key issues for the year, including a summary of all audit opinions provided; 

 Progress on implementation of high risk recommendations; 

 Key financial systems; 

 Other internal audit activity; 

 Effect of COVID-19 on planned work; and 

 Anti-fraud and corruption coverage. 

Page 21

7

Item 7



 
5. A summary of the major findings from audit reviews completed during quarter 4 of 

2019/20 is included in Annexe B (major findings from previous quarters have already been 
reported).   

 
6. Finally, Section 6 of the annual report sets out details of internal audit performance for the 

year, including details of compliance against the relevant professional standards 
 

INTRODUCTION: 

 
7. Following the repositioning of Internal Audit back into the Finance community and the 

wider Orbis partnership, the service is now a fully integrated internal audit team with East 
Sussex County Council and Brighton & Hove City Council.   

 
8. During 2019/20 the Surrey County Council Internal Audit team has worked closely with the 

two partner internal audit teams to share best practice and align working practices, which 
has been facilitated by the implementation of a shared audit management system.   

 
9. Collaborative working has led to changes in various aspects of Internal Audit practice and 

process, including revised audit report formats, revisions to the narrative of audit opinions, 
and more closely aligned committee reports between all partners.  These have all now 
been fully embedded.  Within the structure there sits an Orbis Chief Internal Auditor, whilst 
Audit Managers have been appointed to the three sovereign authority teams and to the 
two specialist teams (ICT, and Counter Fraud). 

 
10. During 2019/20 the Audit Manager has continued to undertake the following 

responsibilities within the council to complement the work of Internal Audit: 
 

 Member of the Governance Panel; 

 Member of Finance Senior Management Team; and 

 Member of the Transformation Network 
 
 The Chief Internal Auditor also undertakes additional responsibilities across all three 

partner organisations, but specifically at Surrey County Council this includes: 
 

 Member of the Tier 3 management group 

 Member of the Risk Governance Group 

 Member of the Governance Panel 
 

IMPLICATIONS: 

 
11.   Financial  
         Equalities 

Risk management and value for money 
 

12. There are no direct implications (relating to finance, equalities, risk management or value 
for money) arising from this report.  Any such matters highlighted as part of the audit work 
referred to in this report would be progressed through the agreed Reporting and Escalation 
Policy. 

 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
11. The Chief Internal Auditor and Audit Manager will continue to update members on the 

progress of issues within this report that have not been fully concluded. 
 

 
REPORT AUTHORS:  Russell Banks, Chief Internal Auditor 

Page 22

7



     David John, Audit Manager 
 
 
CONTACT DETAILS: telephone: 01273 481447    

email:Russell.banks@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
  telephone: 0208 541 7762 
  email: david.john@surreycc.gov.uk   
      
 

Page 23

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Surrey County Council 
 

  
ANNEXE A 

 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
ANNUAL REPORT & OPINION 

2019/2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
  

Page 25

7



 1 

1. Internal Control and the Role of Internal Audit 
 
1.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The full role and 
scope of the Council’s Internal Audit Service is set out within our Internal Audit Charter. 
 
1.2 It is a management responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and outcomes 
achieved. 
 
1.3 Annually the Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide an overall opinion on the 
Council’s internal control environment, risk management arrangements and governance 
framework to support the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
2. Delivery of the Internal Audit Plan 
 
2.1 The Council’s Internal Audit Strategy and Plan is updated each year based on a 
combination of management’s assessment of risk (including that set out within the 
departmental and strategic risk registers) and our own risk assessment of the Council’s major 
systems and other auditable areas.  The process of producing the plan involves extensive 
consultation with a range of stakeholders to ensure that their views on risks and current 
issues, within individual departments and corporately, are identified and considered.    
 
2.2 In accordance with the audit plan for 2019/20, a programme of audits was carried out 
covering all Council departments and, in accordance with best practice, this programme was 
reviewed during the year and revised to reflect changes in risk and priority. This has included 
responding to, and investigating, allegations of fraud and other irregularities, and in the latter 
part of the year to respond to the Coronavirus pandemic.  
 
2.3 All adjustments to the audit plan were agreed with the relevant departments and 
reported throughout the year to the Audit and Governance Committee as part of our periodic 
Internal Audit progress reports.  Whilst it did not make a material difference to our overall 
audit plan delivery for the year, and our subsequent annual audit opinion, the Coronavirus 
pandemic meant that a number of reviews in progress at the time were not completed to 
final report stage.  Where appropriate, the findings from these audits were still reported to 
services for information, with a view to finalising the reports at a future date.    
 
2.4 In other cases, planned work was suspended as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic 
and will therefore be considered for inclusion within our 2020/21 audit plan.  Given the 
ongoing impact of the Coronavirus on our work, it is anticipated that the 2020/21 audit plan 
will be subject to a comprehensive review, taking into account new risks to the organisation 
arising from the crisis and previous work that we have been unable to complete.  The outcome 
of this will be reported to the Corporate Leadership Team and the Audit and Governance 
Committee once it has been completed. 
 
3. Audit Opinion 
 

Page 26

7



 2 

3.1 No assurance can ever be absolute; however, based on the internal audit work 
completed, the Chief Internal Auditor can provide reasonable assurance1 that Surrey County 
Council has in place an adequate and effective framework of governance, risk management 
and internal control for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.   
 
3.2 Further information on the basis of this opinion is provided below but in summary, the 
results of internal audit activities during the year have been generally positive, including 
improved levels of assurance for a number of partial or minimal audit opinions previously 
issued in 2018/19. Whilst this is the case, internal audit activities have still identified a number 
of areas where the operation of internal controls has not been fully effective, as reflected by 
the two minimal assurance opinions and five partial assurance reports issued in the year.  
 
3.3 Significant effort continues to be made by the organisation to strengthen governance, 
risk management and internal control.  Additionally, major transformational programmes 
have started to deliver their anticipated benefits during the year.   
 
3.4 Where improvements in controls are required as a result of any of our work, we have 
agreed appropriate remedial action with management. 
 
4. Basis of Opinion 
 
4.1 The opinion and the level of assurance given takes into account: 
 

 All audit work completed during 2019/20, planned and unplanned; 

 Follow-up of actions from previous audits; 

 Management’s response to the findings and recommendations; 

 Ongoing advice and liaison with management, including regular attendance by the Chief 
Internal Auditor and Audit Managers at organisational meetings relating to risk, 
governance and internal control matters; 

 Effects of significant changes in the Council’s systems; 

 The extent of resources available to deliver the audit plan; and 

 Quality of the Internal Audit service’s performance. 
 
4.2 No limitations have been placed on the scope of Internal Audit during 2019/20.  It 
should, however, be noted that very little internal audit activity was carried out during the 
year in relation to Surrey County Council schools.  Our Internal Audit opinion for 2019/20 
therefore excludes the control environment within schools.  However, partway through the 
year additional funding was agreed with Corporate Finance to allow for a five-year audit 
programme to be initiated across all Surrey’s maintained schools.  Planning for the launch of 
this project was underway, with audits due to start in quarter one of the 2020/21 annual plan, 
before the onset of Coronavirus.  

 
5. Key Internal Audit Issues for 2019/20 
 

                                            
1 This opinion is based on the activities set out in paragraph 4.  It is therefore important to emphasise that it is 
not possible or practicable to audit all activities of the council within a single year. 

Page 27

7



 3 

5.1 The overall audit opinion should be read in conjunction with the key issues set out in 
the following paragraphs. These issues, and the overall opinion, have been taken into account 
when preparing and approving the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 
 
5.2 The internal audit plan is delivered each year through a combination of formal reviews 
with standard audit opinions, direct support for projects and new system initiatives, 
investigations, grant audits and ad hoc advice. The following graph provides a summary of the 
outcomes from all audits finalised during 2019/20 with standard audit opinions:  
  

 
 
 5.3 A full listing of all completed audits and opinions for the year is included at Appendix 
B, along with an explanation of each of the assurance levels2.  Whilst the results of all audit 
work completed is reported to CLT and Audit and Governance Committee throughout the 
year, those reviews with minimal assurance have been summarised again below for 
completeness: 
 

 Pension Administration – the impact of the legacy issues within this area meant that our 
2018/19 audit was only published in early 2019/20 as a result of extended testing being 
required.  We identified that little progress had been made in the implementation of 
previously agreed audit actions, whilst the current audit found significant control 
weaknesses existed.  These included a lack of documented procedure notes, a backlog of 
pension administration tasks which impacted on service performance, issues around data 
quality and key reconciliations not being undertaken and working practices that were 
paper-based and inefficient. 
 
We supported the service throughout 2019/20 as various managerial changes were made 
and a new Service Improvement Plan was implemented.  However, progress has  

 
 
2 Due to the Coronavirus crisis a number of reports were issued in the final quarter as draft reports without us 
yet obtaining a formal response from management in terms of factual accuracy and agreeing actions arising.  
These reports are therefore subject to potential amendment once such responses are received. 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Substantial Reasonable Partial Minimal No opinion

Audit Opinions 2019-20

Page 28

7



 4 

 
remained slow to address many of the key issues.  A follow-up audit in quarter 4 of the  
year was paused due to the Coronavirus outbreak, but the work undertaken reviewing 
progress against three previously agreed high priority actions confirmed that the control 
environment in this area remains weak. 
 

 CFLC Schools Safeguarding Arrangements - this audit sought to provide assurance over 
the arrangements in place whereby the Education Safeguarding Team collated 
safeguarding data and information from education providers to provide the council with 
assurance over its current statutory obligations. 
 
Our original audit identified that the processes within this specific team were deficient 
and not fit for purpose.  At the time of the audit, however, Children’s Services were going 
through a major top-down reorganisation and new management and structures were 
brought in across the directorate to improve practice and processes. 
 
We therefore undertook a follow-up of this audit within 2019/20 and a draft report was 
issued just before the lockdown caused by Coronavirus.  This follow-up work was able to 
provide greater assurance from the revised approaches that this team has undergone 
since the restructure, and whilst the final report has not yet been issued, a provisional 
audit opinion of reasonable assurance has been given.  
 

5.4 In addition to the above, a total of 5 audits received partial assurance opinions in the 
year as follows: 
 
• GDPR compliance; 
• Surveillance Cameras; 
• Health & Safety; 
• Officer Code of Conduct; and 
• Property Asset Management System (PAMS) Income. 
 
5.5 Whilst actions arising from these reviews will be followed up by Internal Audit, either 
through specific reviews or via established action tracking arrangements, it is important that 
management take prompt action to secure the necessary improvements in internal control. 
 
5.6 Included in the graph above are two other reviews where we have revisited areas 
which had previously received lower levels of assurance.  For both of these (Looked After 
Children Initial Health Assessments, and Annual Car User Lump Sum Allowances), we have 
been able to issue revised, improved opinions of reasonable assurance.   
 
5.7 As well as conducting formal follow-up reviews, we have in place arrangements to 
track the implementation of all high risk audit recommendations issued during the year. As at 
31 March 2020, of the 25 high risk recommendations issued and due by the end of the 
2019/20, we are able to report that 100% had been implemented within the agreed 
timescales.  We will continue to monitor implementation of outstanding actions and will 
escalate to senior management and Members where insufficient progress is made. 
 
5.7 As at 31 March 2020, a total of twenty three planned reviews from 2019/20 remained 
in progress but had been paused as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic so that Internal 

Page 29

7



 5 

Audit work would not impede service response to the emergency. Thirteen of these have now 
been finalized and two more are at draft report stage, and we are working with management 
to progress these to final reports. For the remaining audits, depending on the circumstances 
of returning to business-as-usual, these will be completed later in the financial year.   
 

Key Financial Systems 
 
5.8 Given the substantial values involved, each year a significant proportion of our time is 
spent reviewing the Council’s key financial systems, both corporate and departmental. Of 
those completed during 2019/20, all of these have resulted in either full or substantial 
assurance being provided over the control environment.  
  

Other Internal Audit Activities 
 
5.9 During 2019/20, Internal Audit has continued to provide advice, support and 
independent challenge to the organisation on risk, governance and internal control matters 
across a range of areas.  These include: 
 

 Continued our work to support the Council’s transformation programme, based a 
series of focus areas agreed with management.  These include overall governance 
arrangements, project management, risk management, data quality and mechanisms 
for ensuring appropriate internal control arrangements are maintained as a result of 
service changes; 

 Supporting the Risk Governance Group, formed of the Chief Internal Auditor and key 
statutory officers, including the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and Monitoring 
Officer; and 

 Attending the reconvened Governance Panel, which in part helps to oversee the 
production of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

 
5.10 As well as actively contributing to, and advising these groups, we utilise the 
intelligence gained from the discussions to inform our own current and future work 
programmes to help ensure our work continues to focus on the most important risk areas. 
 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
 
5.11 During 2019/20, the Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team continued to deliver both 
reactive and proactive fraud services across the Orbis Partnership.   
 
5.12 The team logged 19 allegations under the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy, with cases being identified through the Council’s confidential reporting hotline or 
referrals from other departments.  As a result of the allegations, 15 cases were taken 
forward to investigation by Internal Audit or where support was provided to a management 
investigation, with the remainder being referred to local management, another local 
authority, or assessed as requiring no further action.  
 
5.13 The following provides a summary of the investigation activity undertaken by the 
Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team in the last 12 months: 
 

Page 30

7



 6 

 Internal Audit provided support to management following allegations that a member 
of staff had privately sold their work mobile phone. The officer resigned whilst the 
investigation was ongoing with the cost of the handset recovered from their final 
salary payment; 
 

 Following receipt of a whistleblowing report alleging the failure of an officer to 
follow due process during a severance, Internal Audit undertook preliminary 
investigations and found there was no case to answer; 

 

 Following a whistleblowing report that an employee was manipulating their 
timesheets, Internal Audit undertook analysis of network activity and timesheet 
records. The findings were passed to management to proceed with support from HR. 
The employee subsequently resigned from their post; 

 

 Internal Audit was asked to undertake a review of cash handling controls at a school 
following the loss of unbanked income. The review found no evidence of wrongdoing 
but a number of control improvements were identified and reported as a result of 
the review; 

 

 Following a whistleblowing report that a proper appointment process had not been 
followed when engaging a consultant, Internal Audit conducted a review of the 
appointment process. The contract was subsequently cancelled; 

 

 Internal Audit provided support to a management investigation concerning the 
misuse of petty cash at a children’s home. Following the management investigation, 
we agreed a number of actions to improve internal control over the use of petty cash 
and purchase cards at the home;  

 

 Following a notification from the Department of Work & Pensions that an employee 
had used a DWP system to view their own information, we provided advice and 
support to a management investigation, following which the employee concerned 
was given a formal warning; 

 

 Following concerns that client monies were unaccounted for, Internal Audit 
investigated the management of client funds at an County Council adult care home. 
The audit work identified poor practice and lack of compliance with procedures, but 
did not find evidence that cash had been subject to misappropriation. A report was 
provided to management and the employee subsequently resigned prior to a 
disciplinary hearing; 
 

 Analysis of billing data highlighted a mobile device that had incurred £1,800 of 
charges over a year relating to non-business use. Internal Audit established that the 
device had previously been reported as stolen but that the connection had not been 
cancelled. Coincidentally, during the investigation we also identified a salary 
overpayment that had been incurred over almost two years relating to the same 
officer. The salary has been corrected and a payment plan is being agreed to recover 
the overpayment; and 

Page 31

7



 7 

 Six further investigations remain open at the time of writing this report, in addition 
to ongoing assistance being provided to Surrey Police on a case previously reported 
on in 2018/19. 
 

5.14 Any internal control weaknesses identified during our investigation work are 
reported to management and actions for improvement are agreed. This work is also used to 
inform future internal audit activity. 
 
5.15 As well as the investigation work referred to above, we continue to be proactive in 
the identification and prevention of potential fraud and corruption activity across the 
Authority and in raising awareness amongst staff.  
 
5.16 Progress over the last 12 months is outlined below: 
 

Priority Progress to date 

Reactive investigations The Counter Fraud Team is responsible for assessing and evaluating fraud 
referrals received by each sovereign partner, and then leading on 
subsequent investigations. The team have implemented a coordinated 
approach to assessing and logging referrals and adopted consistent 
procedures for recording investigations. 
 
During the 12 month period to date, there have been several investigations 
across the partnership which have been resourced through a mixture of the 
Counter Fraud Team and sovereign audit teams. 

NFI Exercise The Counter Fraud Team have taken on responsibility for the coordination 
and submission of datasets at each authority. The NFI key contacts are 
members of the counter fraud team to ensure a consistent approach is 
followed and good practice is shared across all partners. 
 
Results from the matching exercise were received in Spring 2019 and the 
counter fraud team have been liaising with internal departments and 
partner authorities to review, prioritise and investigate flagged matches. To 
date, overall savings of £79,565.83 have been recorded. This is split between 
the following reports ‘Pensions to DWP deceased data (£7072.97)’ and 
‘Private Residential Care Homes to DWP deceased data (£72,492.86)’. 

Counter Fraud Policies Each Orbis partner has in place a counter fraud strategy that sets out their 
commitment to preventing, detecting and deterring fraud. The Counter 
Fraud Team have reviewed the sovereign strategies and aligned them with 
best practice to ensure a robust and consistent approach to tackling fraud 
across the partnership.  

Fraud Risk Assessments 
 

Fraud risk assessments have been consolidated to ensure that the current 
fraud threat has been considered and mitigating actions identified. The final 
Fraud Risk Assessment is continually reviewed.  

Fraud Response Plans The Fraud Response Plans take into consideration the results of the fraud 
risk assessments and emerging trends across the public sector in order to 
provide a proactive counter fraud programme. This includes an increased 
emphasis on data analytics.  

Fraud Awareness 
 

The team have refreshed and rolled out a fraud eLearning package to the 
whole organisation. This was rolled out in conjunction with fraud awareness 
workshops to help specific, targeted services identify the risk of fraud and 
vulnerabilities in their processes and procedures.  
 

Page 32

7



 8 

Fraud awareness workshops were delivered to school governors and fraud 
bulletins highlighting potential fraud risks have been provided to schools.  
 
A fraud awareness campaign took place during November as part of 
National Fraud Awareness week. Regular fraud alerts have been provided to 
departments including both banking and schools.  

 
5.17 Whilst it is our opinion that the control environment in relation to fraud and 
corruption is satisfactory and the incidence of fraud is considered low for an organisation of 
this size and diversity, we continue to be alert to the risk of fraud, particularly in the current 
pandemic where controls are being changed and new fraudulent practices have arisen.  This 
includes leading on the Surrey Counter Fraud Partnership; the aim of which is to deliver a 
strong and co-ordinated approach to preventing, detecting and responding to fraud.   
 

Amendments to the Audit Plan 
 
5.18       In accordance with proper professional practice, the Internal Audit plan for the year 
was kept under regular review to ensure that the service continued to focus its resources in 
the highest priority areas based on an assessment of risk.  Through discussions with 
management, the following reviews were added to the original audit plan during the year: 
 

 Linden Farm Capital Project 

 IMAGINE (EU grant) 

 Disabled Facilities Grant 

 Waste PFI  

 Officer Code of Conduct 

 Member Code of Conduct 

 Unearthed Grant 

 SFRS Health & Safety in Fire Stations 

 Overseas Pensioners Life Certification 
 

5.19       In order to allow these additional audits to take place, the following audits have 
been removed or deferred from the audit plan and, where appropriate, will be considered 
for inclusion in future audit plans as part of the overall risk assessment completed during 
the annual audit planning process.  These changes have been made on the basis of risk 
prioritisation and/or as a result of developments within the service areas concerned 
requiring a rescheduling of audits: 
 

 Surrey Choices 

 Area SEN Finance Processes 

 Voluntary Grants 

 Coroner’s Service 

 Risk Management 

 Surrey Wildlife Contract 

 Property Investment Company 

 SEND Case Management 

 SCC / Guildford Borough Council Housing Improvement Programme  

Page 33

7



 9 

 

6. Internal Audit Performance 
 
6.1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the internal audit service to be 
reviewed annually against the Standards, supplemented with a full and independent external 
assessment at least every five years. The following paragraphs provide a summary of our 
performance during 2019/20, including the results of our first independent PSIAS assessment, 
an update on our Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and the year end results 
against our agreed targets. 
 

PSIAS 
 
6.2 The Standards cover the following aspects of internal audit, all of which were 
independently assessed during 2018 by the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) and subject 
to a refreshed self-assessment in 2020: 
 

 Purpose, authority and responsibility;  

 Independence and objectivity; 

 Proficiency and due professional care;  

 Quality assurance and improvement programme;  

 Managing the internal audit activity;  

 Nature of work; 

 Engagement planning;  

 Performing the engagement;  

 Communicating results; 

 Monitoring progress; and 

 Communicating the acceptance of risks.  
 

6.3 The results of the SWAP review and our latest self-assessment found a high level of 
conformance with the Standards with only a small number of minor areas for improvement.  
Work has taken place to address these issues, none of which were considered significant, and 
these are subject to ongoing monitoring as part of our quality assurance and improvement 
plan.   

 
Key Service Targets 

 
6.4 Performance against our previously agreed service targets is set out in Appendix A.  
Overall, client satisfaction levels remain high, demonstrated through the results of our post 
audit questionnaires, discussions with key stakeholders throughout the year and annual 
consultation meetings with Chief Officers.   
 
6.5 We have completed 88.7% of the 2019/20 audit plan, just under our target of 90%.  As 
reported in 5.6 above, a number of outstanding reviews were nearing completion at year end 
and, due to the impact of the COVID-19 crisis, there are a larger number of reports than usual 
still in draft status at the year end. Where this is the case this is noted against the title of the 
audit in this report. 
 

Page 34

7



 10 

6.6 In respect of the implementation of agreed management actions indicator, we 
achieved 100% of actions implemented in the period.  However, in respect of the audit of 
Pensions Administration specifically, we had agreed with management to reschedule the 
timing of some actions to allow for a new service improvement plan to be implemented.  
Although verbal assurances were received late on in 2019/20 to suggest progress was on track 
for four previously agreed high priority actions, a initial audit commenced just before the 
COVID-19 lockdown identified that this was not the case, and as a result it is unlikely that the 
new implementation date of 31 March 2020 was met for all of these actions. 
 
6.7 Internal Audit will continue to liaise with the Council’s external auditors (Grant 
Thornton) to ensure that the Council obtains maximum value from the combined audit 
resources available. 
 
6.8 In addition to this annual summary, CLT and the Audit and Governance Committee will 
continue to receive performance information on internal audit throughout the year as part of 
our quarterly progress reports. 
 

Page 35

7



 11 

Appendix A 

Internal Audit Performance Indicators 2018/19 
 

Aspect of 
Service 

Orbis IA 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target RAG 
Score 

Actual 
Performance 

Quality 
 

Annual Audit Plan 
agreed by Audit 
Committee 

By end April G Approved by Audit & 
Governance Committee 
on 8 April 2019. 

Annual Audit Report 
and Opinion 
 

By end July G Approved by Audit & 
Governance Committee 
on 29 July 2019. 

Customer 
Satisfaction Levels 

90% 
satisfied 
 
 

G 100%   

Productivity 
and Process 
Efficiency 

Audit Plan – 
completion to draft 
report stage 

90% A 88.7%  

Compliance 
with 
Professional 
Standards 

Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards 

Conforms G 
 

Last independent external 
assessment (2018) 
awarded highest level of 
conformance.   
 
Confirmed in most recent 
self-assessment, Quarter 4 
2019/20 

 Relevant legislation 
such as the Police 
and Criminal 
Evidence Act, 
Criminal Procedures 
and Investigations 
Act  

Conforms G 
 

No evidence of non-
compliance identified. 

Outcome 
and degree 
of influence 

Implementation of 
management actions 
agreed in response 
to audit findings 

95% for high 
priority 
agreed 
actions 

G 100% 

Our staff Professionally 
Qualified/Accredited 
 
 

80% G 87%  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36

7



 12 

Appendix B 
Summary of Opinions for Internal Audit Reports issued during 2019/20 
 
Substantial Assurance: 
(Explanation of assurance levels provided at the bottom of this document) 

 

Audit Title  Department 

Procure to Pay (2019/20) Finance 

Academy Transition Arrangements Schools & Learning 

 
Reasonable Assurance: 
 

Audit Title  Department 

Payroll (2018/19) Finance 

Order to Cash (2018/19) Finance 

Treasury Management (2018/19) Finance 

General Ledger (2018/19) Finance 

Payroll (2019/20) Finance 

Collusion in Procurement Finance 

Annual Car User Lump Sum [ACULS] follow-up Business Operations 

Member Code of Conduct Law & Governance 

Cultural Compliance (Surrey Commercial Services) Commercial Services 

Looked After Children (Initial Health Assessments) Children’s Services 

Virtual Schools Schools & Learning 

Post Babcock 4S Governance Arrangements Schools & Learning 

ICT Asset Management IMT 

Third Party IT Providers IMT 

Cyber Security IMT 

ICT Compliance Framework IMT 

Residential Care Homes ASC 

Surrey Heartlands Public Health 

Payments to GP’s and Pharmacies Public Health 

Surplus Assets (follow-up) Land & Assets 

Kier Lot 1 contract review Highways 

Cultural Compliance (Surrey Fire & Rescue) SFRS 

 
Partial Assurance: 
 

Audit Title  Department 

GDPR compliance Corporate 

Health & Safety Corporate 

Surveillance Cameras Land & Assets 

Officer Code of Conduct Corporate 

PAMS Income (2018/19) Land & Assets 

 
 
 
 

Page 37

7



 13 

Minimal Assurance: 
 

Audit Title  Department 

Pension Administration (2018/19) Business Operations 

School Safeguarding Arrangements (2018/19) Children’s Services 

 
Other audit activity undertaken during 2019/20 (including direct support for projects and 
new system initiatives and grant audits): 
 

Audit Title  Department 

Unearthed grant certification Finance 

Local Capital Highways grant certification Highways 

Bus Subsidy grant certification Highways 

Troubled Families grant certification (x 4 instalments) Children’s Services 

Interreg Europe – Urban Links To Landscape grant certification  (x 
2 semesters) 

Economic Growth 

Interreg Europe – DigiTourism grant certification (x 2 semesters) Economic Growth 

Interreg Europe NE – IMAGINE grant certification (x2 semesters) Economic Growth 

Carbon Reduction Credits / Greenhouse Gases annual 
certification 

Environment 

PREVENT Agenda (position statement) Children’s Services 

Transformation Programme  Corporate 

eRecruitment (position statement) Corporate 

Making Tax Digital (position statement) Finance 

Orbis Customer Access Portal (position statement) IMT  

Linden Farm capital programme Land & Assets 

Waste PFI ET & I 

 
Audits Carried Forward (suspended as a result of Covid19) from 2019/20 to 2020/21 (note 
that, where draft reports have been issued to clients, or the audit has subsequently been 
completed, these have been marked as such in the following list): 
 

Audit Title  Department Status 

General Ledger (2019/20)  Finance Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Financial Assessment and Income 
Collection (ASC) (2019/20)  

Finance Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Transformation Programme  Corporate Now complete and final report 
issued (Substantial Assurance) 

Revenue Budgetary Control 
(2019/20)  

Finance Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Pension Fund Administration 
(2019/20 position statement)  

Business 
Operations 

Now complete and final report 
issued (no opinion) 

Overseas Pensioner Life Certification  Business 
Operations 

Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Local Economic Partnerships (LEP’s) ET & I Now complete and final report 
issued (Partial Assurance) 

Page 38

7



 14 

Audit Title  Department Status 

Children’s Services Quality Assurance 
(follow-up)  

Children’s 
Services 

Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Order to Cash (2019/20)  Finance Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Surrey Fire & Rescue Pension 
Schemes Administration  

Bus Ops/SFRS Now complete and final report 
issued (Minimal Assurance) 

Care Plan Assessments/Care Plan 
Management (follow-up)  

Children’s 
Services 

Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

LAS (ASC) application audit IMT Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Mobile Device Management IMT Now complete and final report 
issued (Reasonable Assurance) 

Use of Consultants  Corporate Draft report issued 

Schools Safeguarding Arrangements 
(follow-up)  

Children’s 
Services 

Draft report issued 

Pension Fund Investment (2019/20) Finance Work-in-progress 

Capital Programme (2019/20) Finance Suspended, relaunch in July 

Treasury Management (2019/20) Finance Work-in-progress 

CSF Data Integrity Children’s 
Services 

Work-in-progress 

Home to School Transport Children’s 
Services 

Work-in-progress 

Patch Management IMT Work-in-progress 

Cloud Computing IMT Work-in-progress 

Better Care Fund Public Health Work-in-progress 

 
 

Audit Opinions and Definitions 

Opinion Definition 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Controls are in place and are operating as expected to manage key risks 
to the achievement of system or service objectives. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

Most controls are in place and are operating as expected to manage 
key risks to the achievement of system or service objectives. 

Partial 
Assurance 

There are weaknesses in the system of control and/or the level of non-
compliance is such as to put the achievement of the system or service 
objectives at risk. 

Minimal 
Assurance 

Controls are generally weak or non-existent, leaving the system open to 
the risk of significant error or fraud.  There is a high risk to the ability of 
the system/service to meet its objectives. 

 

Page 39

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Surrey County Council 
 

ANNEXE B 
 
Audits Completed in Quarter 4 (January to March 2020) 
 
Residential Care Homes  
 
Surrey County Council’s contract with Anchor came to an end in March 2019, at which point 
the council took back eight, refurbished homes and Anchor retained the nine, re-built 
homes for a further 10-years. 
 
The purpose of our audit was to consider the robustness of arrangements in place to 
manage the return of the eight residential care homes from Anchor back in-house, and to 
seek assurance that resources remain appropriate to meet the care needs of residents both 
now and in the future. 
 
Specifically, we reviewed key documentation and processes in order provide assurance that 
controls are in place to meet the following objectives: 

 Processes and arrangements in place were compliant with relevant regulations; 

 A lessons learnt exercise had been conducted and information retained to promote 
the success of future projects; 

 Medium and long-term plans are place for the eight homes already returned to SCC, 
as well as the homes that will return from Anchor and Care UK; 

 The financial implications of transferring homes back to SCC had been fully assessed 
and included in plans; 

 There was a strategy in place to ensure the workforce is appropriate to deliver care; 
and 

 There were sufficient resources in place within relevant directorates to support SCC’s 
care service requirements. 

 
Overall we were able to provide reasonable assurance that these key controls were in place.  
The transfer was treated as a project, rather than business as usual, which led to success in 
coordinating with a number of services across the council, not just ASC Service Delivery.   
 
A number of areas were also identified which required attention by management, and all of 
these were agreed within the final audit report: 

 Due to access to the homes being restricted by Anchor prior to transfer, the financial 
implications of transferring the eight homes back to SCC could not be fully assessed 
prior to their return.  Whilst revenue costs increased from initial estimates but are 
now approximately in line with the revised budget, additional capital costs totalling 
£2.3 million over five years were subsequently identified after transfer and have had 
to be factored into the council’s capital budget; 

 Earlier preparatory work to plan for the end of the contract would have been 
beneficial, allowing time to explore alternatives including other procurement 
activity; 

 At the time of the audit no formal decision had been taken regarding the future 
plans for the eight homes already returned to SCC, nor the services remaining with 
Anchor and Care UK.   To allow all possible options to be contemplated and ensure 

Page 41

7



 

the needs of the county and its residents are met, we suggested the properties 
would need to be considered as part of future commissioning strategy with options 
needing to be deliberated in a timely manner taking the wider ASC strategy into 
account.   

 
Public Health - Payments to GPs and Pharmacies  
 
Surrey’s Public Health services are funded by Public Health England, as was £35.6m for 
2019/20.  The two largest areas of spend are with General Practices (GP) and Pharmacies 
and relate to health checks and long acting reversible contraceptives (LARC) as part of 
sexual health services.  Payments made in 2018/19 year for health checks totalled £271,518 
to GPs and £61,494 to pharmacies, whilst LARC (which are only provided by GPs) totalled 
£1,148,725 in the same period. 
 
Our audit specifically focussed on the distribution of payments relating to health check 
services and LARC with a view to assessing possible fraud risks.  A previous audit, completed 
in March 2016, highlighted the potential for incorrect claims and payments to be made 
because there were no key controls to validate claims from GPs or pharmacies.  While the 
service has addressed the historical audit findings to an extent, we analysed a full year of 
data from 2018/19 (as a full year dataset from 2019/20 was not available at the time of the 
audit) to ensure no residual fraud indicators remained. 
 
Our conclusions from this analytical review of available data were that: 

 the risk of SCC disproportionately paying for residents outside Surrey appears to be 
low, as only 3% (51 of 1,684) of all pharmacy health checks claims are ‘out of Surrey’ 
patients; 

 GPs and pharmacies are only making claims for payments that fall within the 

confirmed Public Health Agreements in place; 

 there remains limited validation of payments for health checks to both GPs and 
pharmacies, although the potential risk of fraudulent claims appears to be low given 
the low volume and controlled spend on the service; and 

 although validation of LARC claims by GPs is 'light touch', the potential for fraudulent 
claims is reduced because LARC implants require follow-up appointments, which are 
audited under NHS England contract terms.  Consequently, if the service was not 
delivered, or was fraudulently claimed, missed follow-up appointments would be 
identified during clinical governance audits. 
 

We provided advice to Public Health regarding benefits to their service from using data 
analytics tools, such as Tableau, to identify unusual volumes of activity by specific location, 
as well as informing aspects of service provision such as low uptake.  As a result of the 
findings of the audit, we gave an opinion of Reasonable Assurance, with all improvement 
actions agreed with management.    
 
Payroll  
 
Payroll is one of the council’s key financial systems and so is audited annually to provide 
assurance against key system controls. 
 

Page 42

7



 

In the seven months from 1 April 2019 to 31 October 2019, the period sampled in the audit, 
payments in excess of £242m were processed for SCC employees and 116,951 payslips were 
produced.  
 
The purpose of the audit was to provide assurance that controls were in place to meet the 
following control objectives: 

 Starters are properly approved, and pay is calculated and paid from the correct date; 

 Leavers are removed from the payroll in a timely manner and paid correctly and 
accurately to the correct date; 

 Permanent variations to pay are properly approved, calculated and paid from the 
correct date; 

 Pay-runs and BACS transmissions are correct and authorised; 

 Payroll data is regularly reconciled to the general ledger; 

 Temporary payments (including additional hours, expense claims and payment to 
casual staff) are correctly authorised prior to processing; 

 Budget holders confirmed staff are paid appropriately and budgets are monitored; 

 Changes to standing data are reviewed, accurately input and authorised; and 

 Actions from the last payroll audit had been implemented. 
 
Based on the work undertaken, we were able to provide Reasonable Assurance over the 
controls operating within the payroll environment.  
 
However, opportunities existed to further improve the control environment and we agreed 
actions with management in the following respect:  

 With regard to the reconciliation of the General Ledger, whilst some clearance of 
historic suspense account items had occurred since the last audit it is important that 
progress continues in this regard to complete the task; 

 For all starters, copies of original identification documents should be ‘certified’ to 
confirm that they were true copies of originals; 

 Improving controls at service management level, including addressing issues in 
relation to the late submission of leaver forms and lapses in budgetary control; 

 Addressing issues that had led to historical overpayments to staff. 
 
ICT Compliance Frameworks  
 
Organisations face an ever-increasing list of statutory, regulatory, contractual and legal 
compliance obligations. While these areas of compliance concern the whole council, they 
often require significant input from IT&D. 
 
Areas of compliance that have varying impact on IT&D within Surrey County Council include: 
 

 Government Public Sector Network (PSN) Code of Connection (CoCo);  

 Data Security & Protection (DSP) Toolkit; and  

 Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI (DSS)).  
 
While not considered areas of compliance, there is an expectation that the Senior 
Information Risk Owner (SIRO) would also look to take assurance from IT standards such as 
Cyber Essentials & Cyber Essentials Plus.  

Page 43

7



 

 
The primary objective of this audit was to provide assurance that effective controls are in 
place for the overall governance arrangements within IT&D, which help to ensure that 
suitable assurances are provided to the SIRO and the council. 
 
We were able to provide Reasonable Assurance over the controls operating to support the 
accurate completion of the compliance frameworks.  This opinion means that most controls 
are in place and are operating as expected to manage key risks to the achievement of 
system or service objectives. 
 
Our testing found that effective governance processes are in place.  Whilst there are 
statutory requirements for compliance in place for some frameworks e.g. Data Security & 
Protection (DSP) Toolkit, management have adopted a positive culture of looking to gain 
assurance from other relevant standards and work towards compliance with these.  
 
Appropriate review and approval of frameworks and standards is taking place. Officers 
undertaking the review are being provided with enough supporting information to 
undertake this process effectively.  
 
Arrangements are in place to provide assurance that continued compliance with 
frameworks and standards is maintained. This is achieved through robust policies as well as 
training and support for members of staff.  
 
We agreed actions in relation to the Senior Information Risk Owners review of 
documentation prior to framework submissions, reviewing and updating relevant policies, 
and ensuring that important information is documented. 
 
Officer Code of Conduct  
 
Our audit examined two aspects of the Code of Conduct for officers, focusing on the gifts 
and hospitality policy, and the requirement for officers to register interests.  Both audits 
were reported together, but with a separate opinion for each aspect. 
 
Gifts & Hospitalities 
 
The purpose of this audit was to provide assurance that controls were in place to meet key 
system objectives, including: 

 The policy was unambiguous, and set out key principles and robust governance 
arrangements; 

 All officer declarations of acceptance were scrutinised and authorised by managers; 

 The policy had been effectively communicated to officers, interims, agency workers, 
and contractors; 

 A reference to compliance with the council’s gifts and hospitality policy had been 
incorporated within all commercial contracts between the council and third parties. 

 
 
 
 

Page 44

7



 

We were not able to provide assurance that all of the controls were in place as expected.  
The existing policy was not considered to be not sufficiently clear and had led to a culture 
where gifts and hospitality were being accepted by officers when they should not have 
been, and that these acceptances were not subject to proper scrutiny or challenge by those 
responsible for approving them. 
 
At the time of our audit the gifts and hospitality policy was under review by HR&OD, so the 
audit was able to suggest improvements in conjunction with a forthcoming implementation 
of an automated self- declaration process via the SAP portal. The suggested improvements 
included: 
 

 The development of a technical solution to allow actual independent authorisation 
by the manager to happen, which is a requirement of the policy; 

 The creation of a single corporate register in which to record entries, allowing 
holistic oversight and accurate reporting; 

 Improvement in terms of clarity and defining principles within the policy, to lead to a 
positive shift in its tone; and 

 Implementing a mechanism within contract documents to encourage third party 
service providers to bring to the attention of the council any relevant declarations of 
gifts and hospitality they have received whilst undertaking council-related business 
or services. 

 
As a result, we were only able to give Partial Assurance in relation to this review, which will 
be subject to a follow up audit in the future to confirm appropriate improvements are 
made.  
 
Registration of Interests 
 
The purpose of this element of the review was to provide assurance that controls were in 
place to meet key objectives including: 

 There were clear policies in place to ensure that employees are aware of their 
responsibility to declare a conflict of interest, and had made such declarations; 

 All employees were aware of their responsibility to complete a declaration of 
interest where their circumstances changed and required it; 

 Declarations had been appropriately acted upon after managerial review and, where 
required, measures are put in place to mitigate the implications of them; and 

 Robust monitoring processes are in place to ensure that all declarations made and 
reviewed in a timely manner. 

 
We concluded that the existing system for recording declarations of was not robust, with 
those records that did exist being held in local drives and emails and not a single central 
record.  At the time of our audit, a SAP-based system was under development to record and 
manage any declarations and consequently actions agreed as a result of our audit supported 
this process. 
 
Improvements that will be derived from the agreed actions being implemented include: 
 

Page 45

7



 

 Using the SAP solution, an annual prompt to all employees will be an effective 
mechanism to consider any changes in circumstances and renew declarations 
accordingly; 

 The provision of training to managers about how to manage declarations, including 
what constitutes a risk and how to propose mitigation measures; 

 Developing arrangements to allow the process to cover employees without access to 
the SAP Portal, including those in care homes, and commercial services; and 

 Devising a process to ensure the inclusion of interim staff, consultants, contractors 
and agency workers. 

 
Allowing for the control environment in place at the time of the audit, we were only able to 
give an opinion of Partial Assurance in this area. 
 
Member Code of Conduct  
 
In a similar vein to the audit above, this review examined two aspects of the Code of 
Conduct for members, focusing on the gifts and hospitality policy, and the requirement for 
members to register interests.  Both audits were reported together, but with a separate 
opinion for each aspect. 
 
The Localism Act (2011) gave local authorities responsibility for setting members’ standards 
and conduct. In practice there is no legal requirement for local authorities to maintain a gifts 
and hospitality register, nor for individual members to register or declare gifts and 
hospitality they receive as part of their role. However, the responsibility remains with the 
councillor to be aware of their legal obligations. 
 
For both areas our audit reviewed and assessed the processes the council has adopted to 
ensure that appropriate controls were in place (in a similar vein to the officer equivalent 
controls, above). 
 
Gifts & Hospitalities 
 
The council requires members to notify the Monitoring Officer of gifts and hospitality above 
£100, which are recorded and held in a register by the Member Services team. Following a 
review of the equivalent policy at similar local authorities, and in the spirit of transparency 
and in keeping with the Nolan principles, we agreed with the Monitoring Officer that it was 
prudent to decrease the threshold to £50. 
 
Our audit also identified some areas for improvement in the current process, for which 
actions were agreed: 

 To ensure declarations were made within 28 days of the offer being made; 

 To consider the inclusion of refused offers of gifts and hospitality, and not just 
acceptances; 

 To clarify whether a gift to an immediate family member should also be declared; 
and 

 To clarify the guidance over claiming travel costs to and from an event where 
hospitality has been declared, as current practice is inconsistent. 
 

Page 46

7



 

As a result of our audit, we were able to give an opinion of Reasonable Assurance. 
 
Registration of Interests 
 
Generally we found that the system of control in place was reasonable and compliant with 
legislative requirements.  We did, however, identified a few areas where further 
improvements could be made, including: 
 

 Recognising that members would benefit from support in the form of training, 
regular reminders and awareness of their obligations of how and when to record or 
update an interest; 

 We identified that since May 2017 information held under the header 'Register of 
Interests' on the public website has not been updated, largely a result of resourcing 
constraints in the Member Services team (although work is currently being carried 
out to update these records); and 

 The current guidance uses the term 'promptly' to describe the time-line for updating 
the register of interests. To avoid ambiguity, this should be further clarified by 
setting an actual time of 28 days, which is the statutory requirement. 

 
We were able to record an opinion of Reasonable Assurance as a result of our audit. 
 
Grant Certification 
 
We have audited and certified a number of grant claims in this period where the council 
receives funds through different Interreg programmes: Interreg Europe, and Interreg NW.  
These claims are audited in semesters, in programmes that will continue for a number of 
years. 
 
The claims were in respect of: 

 ‘Digi-Tourism’ – to promote Digital Realities (Virtual reality and Augmented reality) in 
the European tourism sector;  

 ‘Urban Links 2 Landscape’ – to develop policies and approaches to the efficient use of 
open land on the fringe of urban areas; and  

 IMAGINE – ‘Inclusive Market AGriculture Incubator in North-West Europe’, which aims 
to tackle youth unemployment by providing sustainable job prospects in the horticulture 
sector, more specifically for young people (15-34 years old) who are NEET. 

 
We have also audited a further stage of the Troubled Families grant, which we were able to 
certify without qualification. 

Page 47

7



This page is intentionally left blank



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

Audit & Governance Committee
28 August 2020

2019/20 Treasury Management Outturn Report

Purpose of the report:  

This report summarises the Council’s treasury management activities during 2019/20, as 
required, to ensure compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA 
Code) which requires the Authority to approve a treasury management annual report after 
the end of each financial year.

Recommendations:

It is recommended that the Committee note the content of the Treasury Management 
Outturn Report for 2019/20 and compliance with all Prudential Indicators.

Background:

1. The Authority has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) 
which requires the Authority to approve Treasury Management half-year and annual 
outturn reports. This is the annual outturn report for 2019/20.

2. The Authority’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators 
for 2019/20 were approved at the Audit and Governance Committee on 7 February 
2019. The investment and borrowing of cash exposes the Council to financial risks 
including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. 
The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the 
Authority’s Treasury management Strategy.

3. An economic commentary provided by our expert Treasury Management Advisors, 
Arlingclose is included in Annex 1

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019/20

Overview

4. On 31 March 2020, the Authority had net borrowing of £643m arising from its revenue 
and capital income and expenditure, an increase of £8m since 31 March 2019. The 
underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), which represents the amount of capital expenditure that is not 
funded from capital receipts, government grants, third party contributions or revenue.

Page 49

8

Item 8



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

5. Net borrowing has increased due to a rise in the CFR as new capital expenditure was 
higher than the financing applied, including minimum revenue provision.  This is set 
out in table 1, below:

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary
31/03/19
Balance

£m

2019/20
Movement

£m

31/03/20
Balance

£m
General Fund CFR
Less PFI Liabilities

1,234
(227)

18
22

1,252
(205)

Gross Borrowing Requirement 1,008 39 1,047
Less usable reserves and working capital (373) (31) (404)
Net Borrowing Requirement 635 8 643

Note: Columns do not sum due to rounding

6. The Treasury Strategy for 2019/20, approved by Audit & Governance Committee in 
February 2019, continued the policy of internal borrowing. This maintains borrowing 
below its underlying level by using available reserves and working capital to reduce the 
need for external borrowing.  This minimises interest rate risks and keeps interest 
costs low.  

7. The Council also manages cash on behalf of Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner, 
the balance of which was £17.4m as at 31 March 2020. The Council accounts for this 
as short term borrowing. The treasury management position as at 31st March 2020 
and the year-on-year change in show in table 2 below.

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary
31/03/19
Balance

£m

2019/20
Movement

£m

31/03/20
Balance

£m
Long-term borrowing
Short-term borrowing 
Surrey Police

397
255

14

39
(33)

3

436*
222

17
Total borrowing 666 9 675
Money Market Funds (31) (1) (32)
Net borrowing 635 8 643
*Total long term borrowing is £442m.  This includes £5.5m of Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) loans which are managed outside of the Treasury Management 
Strategy.

Borrowing Activity

8. At 31 March 2020, the Authority held £675m of borrowing, an increase of £9m on the 
previous year. The sources of borrowing, interest rates and the year-on-year change in 
show in table 3 below.

Page 50

8



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

Table 3: Borrowing Position

31/03/19
Balance

£m

2019/20
Net 

Movement
£m

31/03/20
Balance

£m

31/03/20 
Rate

%

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
Banks (fixed-term)
Local authorities (short-term)
Surrey Police & Crime Commissioner

387
10

255
14

39 
0

(33)
3

426
10

222
17

3.83
5.00
0.81
0.70

Total borrowing 666 9 675

9. The Authority’s primary consideration when borrowing money is to balance low interest 
charges and cost certainty over the period, while allowing enough flexibility to 
renegotiate a portion of the debt portfolio based upon changing strategic needs.

10. In keeping with these objectives, new long term borrowing from PWLB totalling £40.0m 
was undertaken during 2019/20 to provide cost certainty for a small part of the portfolio 
at attractive interest rates. All other borrowing was undertaken for a period of less than 
one year to enable the Authority to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone 
investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. A summary of the new long term 
borrowing entered into during the year is shown at table 4 below.  

Table 4: New long term borrowing during 2019/20
Principal

(£m)
Maturity Date Term Interest 

Rate
10.0 16 Sep 2034 15 years 1.29%
10.0 23 Sep 2034 15 years 1.30%
10.0 26 Sep 2034 15 years 1.20%
10.0 08 Oct 2034 15 years 1.09%

Investment Activity

11. The Authority holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure, plus reserves and balances held which have not been utilised for internal 
borrowing.

12. Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Authority to invest its 
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments 
before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when 
investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, 
minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably 
low investment income.

13. In furtherance of these objectives, and given the continuing risk and low returns from 
short-term unsecured bank investments, the Authority has kept its cash balances and 
investments low throughout 2019/20 and invested funds principally in Money Market 
Funds to ensure liquidity. During the year, the Authority’s investment balance ranged 
between £0.3m and £125m. The year-end investment position and the year-on-year 
change in show in table 5 below:

Page 51

8



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

Table 5: Investment Position (Treasury Investments)

31/03/19
Balance

£m

2019/20
Net 

Movement
£m

31/03/20
Balance

£m

31/03/20
Rate*

%

Banks & building societies 
Government (incl. local authorities)
Money Market Funds 

0
0

31

0
0
1

0
0

32

0
0

0.69

Total Investments 31 1 32 0.69
*weighted average rate

14. The weighted average return on all investments the Council received in the year to 31 
March 2020 was 0.69%. This compares favourably against the 0.53% average 7-day 
London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) for the same period.

Financial Implications

15. The outturn for interest paid, interest received and the minimum revenue provision are 
outlined in table 6 below.

Table 6: Revenue Implications of Treasury Management Activity
Budget

£m
Outturn

£m
Variance

£m
Interest Paid
Interest Received
MRP

20.9
(0.3)
14.7

18.9
(0.7)
13.8

(2.0)
(0.4)
(0.9)

16. The amount of the Authority’s revenue budget required to be set aside for the future 
repayment of external borrowing is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). 
This amount is calculated by reference to the Council’s balance sheet as at the end of 
the previous financial year. The amount required for 2019/20 was £0.9m less than 
expected when the budget was set. This was due to lower borrowing in the capital 
programme for 2018/19.

17. The variance of £2.0m on interest payable relates primarily to the Council’s continued 
short term borrowing strategy. This resulted in rates payable below those assumed 
when setting the 2019/20 budget.

Compliance Report

18. All treasury management activities undertaken during 2019/20 complied fully with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice and the Authority’s approved Treasury Management Strategy. 
Compliance with specific investment limits, the authorised limit and operational 
boundary for external debt, is demonstrated in tables 7 & 8 below.

Table 7: Debt Limits

2019/20 
Max
£m

31/03/20
Actual

£m

2019/20
Operational 
Boundary

£m

2019/20
Authorised 

Limit
£m

Complied

Total 1,108 1,696
Less: Other long 
term liabilities (PFI) (143) (143)

Underlying 
Borrowing 708 673 966 1,553 

Page 52

8



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

19. Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not 
significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in 
cash flow, and this is not considered a compliance failure. Total debt did not exceed 
the operational boundary at any point in 2019/20. 

Table 8: Investment Limits
2019/20 

Maximum
£m

31/03/20
Actual

£m

2019/20
Limit
£m

Complied

UK Central Government 0 0 Unlimited 
Money Market Funds 125 32 125 
Any group of pooled funds under the 
same management

0 0 25 

Any group of organisations under the 
same ownership

0 0 20 

Any single organisation, except the 
UK Central Government

0 0 20 

Unsecured investments with Building 
Societies

0 0 10 

Treasury Management Indicators

20. The Authority measures and manages its exposure to treasury management risks 
using the following indicators.

Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of exposure to credit risk by 
analysing the investment portfolio against historic default rates to assess the maximum 
exposure to default. Table 7 below shows that as a result of all of the Council’s 
investments being in AAA rated funds the Council has reduced its exposure to security 
risk based on historic default rates of funds of this type.

Table 9: Historic default rates

31/03/20
Amount

£000

Historical 
Experience 
of default

%

Adjustment 
for Market 
conditions

%

31/03/20
Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
to default

£000
Deposits with Banks and 
financial institutions (a) (b) (c) (a) x (c)

Local Authorities 0 0.00% 0.00% 0
AAA Rated Counterparties 32.200 0.04% 0.15% 48
AA Rated Counterparties 0 0.05% 0.18% 0
A Rated Counterparties 0 0.06% 0.22% 0
Other Counterparties 0 0
Total 32,200 48
Note: The maximum exposure to default is based on a full-year holding.  The AAA 
rated counterparties represent Money Market Funds (MMFs).  These are highly liquid 
and secure with short maturities and therefore actual exposure is minimal.

Liquidity: The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the amount 
of cash available to meet unexpected payments. The Council maintains a bank 
overdraft of £100,000, utilises overnight access Money Market Funds and accesses 
short term borrowing to meet cash flow requirements. The Local Authority market 
provides readily available funds.

Page 53

8



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to limit the Authority’s exposure to 
interest rate risk by assessing the impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates. The 
indicator was set based upon an average short term borrowing portfolio of £195m.  
Actual average short term debt was £217m, with rates 0.33% higher than achieved in 
2018/19.  The actual rate variance is therefore within the limit.

Table 10: Interest Rate exposures
31/03/20 
Actual

£m

2019/20 
Limit
£m

Complied

Upper limit on one year revenue impact 
of a 1% rise in rates 0.72 1.95 

Upper limit on one year revenue impact 
of a 1% fall in rates N/A 1.95 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s 
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of 
fixed rate borrowing were:

Table 11: Maturity Structure of Borrowing
31/03/20 
Actual

Upper 
Limit

Lower 
Limit Complied

Under 12 months 35% 50% 0% 
12 months and within 24 months 0% 50% 0% 
24 months and within 5 years 3% 50% 0% 
5 years and within 10 years 2% 75% 0% 
10 years and above 60% 100% 25% 

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than a year: The purpose of this 
indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of interest rate changes.

Table 12: Sums invested for more than one year
2019/20 

Maximum
£m

31/03/20
Actual

£m

2019/20
Limit
£m

Complied

Sums invested for longer than one 
year 0 0 40 

Other Non-Treasury Holdings and Activity

21. Although not classed as treasury management activities, the CIPFA Code requires the 
Authority to report on investments for policy reasons outside of normal treasury 
management. This includes service investments for operational and/or regeneration as 
well as commercial investments which are made mainly for financial reasons.

22. The Authority holds the following non-treasury investments:
 £142m of directly owned investment property
 £234m of loans to Halsey Garton Ltd 
 £93m of equity investments in Halsey Garton Ltd
 £2m of loans to other subsidiaries

23. Such loans and investments have been approved in accordance with the Council’s 
agreed processes. A register of such investments is maintained and performance 
information is reported to the Strategic Investment Board or the Shareholder and 
Investment Panel, in accordance with their Terms of Reference.

Page 54

8



[RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED][RESTRICTED]

24. These non-treasury investments generated £7.2m of investment income for the 
Authority after taking account of direct costs and interest payable.

Implications:

Financial 
25. The financial implications of this report are discussed in paragraph 16-17 and were 

included in the outturn report to Cabinet on 26 May 2020.

Equalities and Diversity Implications
26. There are no direct equities implications of this report

Risk Management Implications
27. The risk management arrangements in relation to treasury management are discussed 

in paragraph 20. 

Next steps:

i. The treasury team will continue to monitor the UK and overseas banking sector and 
will continue to update this Committee as appropriate

ii. In line with the requirements the CIPFA Code, this Committee will receive a half yearly 
report on the Council’s treasury management activities in December 2020 and a full 
year report for 2020/21 in July 2021.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Report contact: Mark Hak-Sanders (Strategic Finance Business Partner (Corporate)

Contact details: mark.haksanders@surreycc.gov.uk

Sources/background papers: 
Capital Budget, Prudential Indicators & Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20
CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management
CIPFA Prudential Code

Page 55

8



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 1 – Economic Context and Regulatory Changes

Provided by the council’s Treasury Advisors, Arlingclose on 24 April 2020

External Context

Economic background: The UK’s exit from the European Union and future trading 
arrangements had remained one of major influences on the UK economy and 
sentiment during 2019/20. The 29th March 2019 Brexit deadline was extended to 12th 
April, then to 31st October and finally to 31st January 2020. Politics played a major 
role in financial markets over the period as the UK’s tenuous progress negotiating its 
exit from the European Union together with its future trading arrangements drove 
volatility, particularly in foreign exchange markets. The outcome of December’s 
General Election removed a lot of the uncertainty and looked set to provide a 
‘bounce’ to confidence and activity.

The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation UK Consumer Price Inflation fell to 
1.7% year-on-year in February, below the Bank of England’s target of 2%. Labour 
market data remained positive. The ILO unemployment rate was 3.9% in the three 
months to January 2020 while the employment rate hit a record high of 76.5%. The 
average annual growth rate for pay excluding bonuses was 3.1% in January 2020 
and the same when bonuses were included, providing some evidence that a 
shortage of labour had been supporting wages. 

GDP growth in Q4 2019 was reported as flat by the Office for National Statistics and 
service sector growth slowed and production and construction activity contracted on 
the back of what at the time were concerns over the impact of global trade tensions 
on economic activity. The annual rate of GDP growth remained below-trend at 1.1%.

Then coronavirus swiftly changed everything. COVID-19, which had first appeared in 
China in December 2019, started spreading across the globe causing plummeting 
sentiment and falls in financial markets not seen since the Global Financial Crisis as 
part of a flight to quality into sovereign debt and other perceived ‘safe’ assets.

In response to the spread of the virus and sharp increase in those infected, the 
government enforced lockdowns, central banks and governments around the world 
cut interest rates and introduced massive stimulus packages in an attempt to reduce 
some of the negative economic impact to domestic and global growth.

The Bank of England, which had held policy rates steady at 0.75% through most of 
2019/20, moved in March to cut rates to 0.25% from 0.75% and then swiftly 
thereafter brought them down further to the record low of 0.1%. In conjunction with 
these cuts, the UK government introduced a number of measures to help businesses 
and households impacted by a series of ever-tightening social restrictions, 
culminating in pretty much the entire lockdown of the UK.

Page 57

8



The US economy grew at an annualised rate of 2.1% in Q4 2019. After escalating 
trade wars and a protracted standoff, the signing of Phase 1 of the trade agreement 
between the US and China in January was initially positive for both economies, but 
COVID-19 severely impacted sentiment and production in both countries. Against a 
slowing economic outlook, the US Federal Reserve began cutting rates in August. 
Following a series of five cuts, the largest of which were in March 2020, the Fed 
Funds rate fell from of 2.5% to range of 0% - 0.25%. The US government also 
unleashed a raft of COVID-19 related measures and support for its economy 
including a $2 trillion fiscal stimulus package. With interest rates already on (or 
below) the floor, the European Central Bank held its base rate at 0% and deposit 
rate at -0.5%.

Financial markets: Financial markets sold off sharply as the impact from the 
coronavirus worsened. After starting positively in 2020, the FTSE 100 fell over 30% 
at its worst point with stock markets in other countries seeing similar huge falls. In 
March sterling touch its lowest level against the dollar since 1985. The measures 
implemented by central banks and governments helped restore some confidence 
and financial markets have rebounded in recent weeks but remain extremely volatile. 
The flight to quality caused gilts yields to fall substantially. The 5-year benchmark 
falling from 0.75% in April 2019 to 0.26% on 31st March. The 10-year benchmark 
yield fell from 1% to 0.4%, the 20-year benchmark yield from 1.47% to 0.76% over 
the same period. 1-month, 3-month and 12-month bid rates averaged 0.61%, 0.72% 
and 0.88% respectively over the period.

Since the start of the calendar 2020, the yield on 2-year US treasuries had fallen 
from 1.573% to 0.20% and from 1.877% to 0.61% for 10-year treasuries. German 
bund yields remain negative.

Page 58

8


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (22 May 2020)
	Minutes

	5 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
	Item X - Tracker Aug 2020

	6 Risk management update
	Risk update for AGC (August)

	7 Internal Audit & Counter Fraud Annual Report and Opinion 2019-20
	SCC Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2019-20 - ANNEXE A Annual Report
	SCC Annual Report and Opinion 2019-20 - ANNEXE B Qtr 4 Reviews

	8 2019/20 Treasury Management Outturn Report
	ANNEX 1 to end of year report 2019-20


